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LIGHE DRATL'.Y RESusCH SOCYIRETY OF LUSTZAL L
McIVOR TRAMWAY TOUR SATURDAY .15th.. JULY 1972

Welecome to the Soeciety's first tour for some eighteen months. We are
hoping to make up for this deficit with some interesting sights today,

It seems: incredible that the major discoveries made in this area in the
last few months - 2 junetions, 2 siding sites, L bridges, numerous cattle
grids — were not made years ago. Perhaps the relative inaccessibility of the
region is mainly responsible for this, although all these"finds" involved a
certain amount.of walking (about 35 miles all told !). However any walking
involved téday should not prove to be too strenuous.

By econsulting your ecopy of the relevant maps you will see that the actual
routes of the branech lines vary considerably in places from those suggested
on page 26 of L.R. No. 35. The whole area east of the Triangle has been acc-—
urately recorded as far as possible, despite limitations presented by Army
firing ranges. The alleged branch lines west of the Triangle to Costerfield
and Redcastle have not been located yet let alone being mapped, so there -is

'still plenty of scope for primary research of this type.

Since the route of the tramway's main line from Tooborac to the Tr;anple
was covered fairly well in the Society's first trip to the area in Decenber
1970, it is not intended to spend time looking at that again today. However,
as we travel from Tooborac, many signs can be seen and details have been
added to thHe maps.

The tour as planned will begin at "Cherrington Junction" (for want of =a
better term.) This junction was discovered in April this year by literally
falling over it. You nmay find it hard to believe when you see the remains for
yourselves, but it serves to reinforce the point that te find anything in this
type of country you have to get out and walk.

The straight branch eontinues up the hill on a steady gradient and then
heads east towards the Moormbool State Forest sone niles away. The curved/
left hand branch turns to the north-east and heads along the present Graytown
road for about half a mile before eurving away to the north just after cross-
ing a deep creek bed. We will not be aseeing this as part of today's tour,but
you may wish to inspect this partieular section if you return %a M _ FTomrnz
visi Greyteown a:d Nagambie this afternoon.

The Graytown/Puckapunyal line,

|

After leaving "Cherrington Junction", the eastern branch passes through
fairly poor eountry which has becorie heavily eroded in places, What was per-
haps a small ehannel beside the formation when the tramway was operating has
weatheredgreatly to the point of forming a diteh 2-3 ft. in depth and about
6 ft. wide leaving the spindly renains of the few remaining slecpers suspend-
ed in nid-air for abou half their length., The cattle grid marked in the niddle
of the paddoeck is alnost eompletely exposed to its foundations by erosion of
the one-time drain to the north of the formation.

Although the formation is traceable to Back Creek, it is very indistinct
on the eastern side. As the formation curves back towards the road, its route
is made clearer by the row of stunps etec. which has been bulldozed at sone
time as the land was cleared. The cattle grid marked near the road is visible
fr-u ears.

Just as the line enters Redgate Forest, very low carthworks indicate the
probable site of one of the original mills., The brarch curves away into fairly
thick but scrubby forest which is an indicator of the original source of the
line’s wealth — sleepers, some telephone poles and thousands of tons of fire-
waod,

Somewhere in this forest area is another branchline whieh appears on
a Forests Commission map. The actual route and junetion have not yet been
found, but the general direction of the branch fits in fairly well with a
proposed branch which was marked on the original wap of proposed lines attach-
ed to the agreement between the McIvor Firewocod and Timber Coupany and the
Shire of McIvor, although the original pronosed branch is shown as being
along Back Creek and not through the forest.

After emerging from the foreat, the line travels gently downhill t0 .ees-
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Graytown Junction

In many ways, tracing the Graytown line has been very difficult. This is
because it was closed in March 1912 according to the "MecIvor Times" of that
rmonth, This would explain why the earthworks - which were very light anyway-
are almoat indistinguishable after 60 years. The second and wost frustrating
reason is that the formation coyly disappears intc the Army firing range, but
a southward turn can just be seen frowm the boundary fenece. Where the line act-
ually finished is still a mystery, especially since evidence gleaned from the
"Nagambie Times" concerning a proposed line from Heathcote via Costerfield to
Graytown_settlement indicates that the settlement was Sor 6 niles fron the
tranway. Aerial photographs of the region are being dbtained in an attenpt to
determine the actual route wi thln the range ‘area, but they have not .arpived
yetes ot , .
One tanglble renain of the Graytown line is what appears to be the snake—
box off a traction or portable engine. Since the Junctlon isc 1ocated en; land-
once owned by Mr Thomas Tehan, an original shareholder in the Company, it =
seens probable that a nill would have been nearby. The dlscovery of.this
snmokebox would seem to confirm thls.

The right hand leg of the junction eventually heads southeast and clinbs
gradually through lighly forested country before reaching the ridge of the low
hills. The tramway seens to finish here, cr further tracece have been obscured
by a fairly new road. Almost without doubt, :this is the elusive Puckapunyal
branch which until now was alleged %o diverge from the main line sone niles to
the south of -the Triangle.

The Cherrington Line

This line was opened by the McIvor Company about 1907 and was the last
to elose — in 1926. Since remains on this branch have had to weather the ele-
nents for only 46 years, there is nuch nore to see ! '

The research concerned with this section of the line has been nost pro-
ductive in terms of relics found. Relatively heavy earthworks wesre involved
in crossing Major's Creek as well as two bridges — one which is still standing
and showing the typical type of construction evident on timber tranways, but
showing an application with 5 ft. 3 in. gauge. Unfortunately, the larger of
the two bridges has alnost disappeared apart from the stunps of a few piers.
The length of the main bridge is difficult to estimate after erosion of the
approaches for almost half a century, but it nust have been 60-80 feet long
and about 15 ft. above the water level of the creek.

The line soon regains the side of the road and continues northwards. A
slight deviation as shown on the nap scon brings the line back on the east
side, north of the present main road between Graytown and Costerfield. It is
now that the trauway enters an area providing further mysteries,

Despite an obviously easier gradient along the present sealed road, the
tranway continues along a steadily steepening gradeé. A Forests Commission map
shows tk--*ine Iallowing this narticular road. The reason for this deviation
is not yet clear.

Even rnore surprising and nysterious is the fenced easement through
which the formation runs for several miles. The line eases gently downhill and
crosses a creek at the bottom of the grade by neans of a 4 span trestle. The
bridge is crossable, but fairliy riecketty, as the piles have been heavily=
scoured by the creek over the years. Once again the coanstruetion of the bhridge
is typical of timber tranways of narrower gauge,

Immediately north of the bhridge a rather savage grade begins — about 1
in 30, After continuing for about 150 yards, the gradient steepens to at least
1 in 20 or less! Although this "uountain" fawouréd loaded trains coning from
Cherrington, it must have been quite a spectacle to see a Baldwin struggling
up the hill tender first with a rake of enpties. '

At the surinit there are many relics of a social nature rather than spec-—
ifically related to the tramway itself. Unfortunately, most of the ancient
bottles have been smashed, but several small "Dr, Morse's Indian Root Pills"
bottles were discovered still in one piece. An interesting aside is that the
pill bottles are narked - "Bottle made in Japan" (sic).
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Page 5
Another interesting thing about this particular site (which we think
was Kelly's Siding) is the number of tree stumps still in evidence. It is
perhaps the most accurate guide to the appearance of the area as it was during
“the twentles,w1th many charcoal burners engaged in making some money fronm the
renains 'of the timber left by the firewood cutters. About 200 yards northwest
is an old charcoal burner with several areas of ash around it.

_About a nile further north are the remains of a small trestle bridge
which has collapsed Traces of the line are very indistinct near the road,but
north of it there 1s n0uh1n~ left because of ploughing. As roadworks have
obliterated the uramway formation along the Cherrington road, the actual point
at which the formation energed fron the. pad1ook has not been located, but we
have mapped it as accurately as possible where: it seems most likely.

- The terninus of’ the line was ecovered fairly quickly on, the Society's
first McIvor trip in Decembex 1970. With a wore thorough 1nvest1gat10n, soule
further rellcs could be- found.

R pe— ——— ——

T

The tramway operations of the seIvor Timber & Flrewood Conpany.

Through an agreenent stned on 2°nd March 1906. between the Shlre of
McIvor and the McIvor Timber and Firewood Company Pty. Ltd.; the company was
enpowered tohuild their traunways along roads within the Shire boundaries at an
annual rental of 2/6 per nile. The company agreed to operate the tranway for
a ninimum of 15 years with an opticn of reneval for a further 15 years,

The company established itself at a sive about 2 4f a mile north of Toc-
borac. Extensive sidings were laid and connected to the V R Heatheote Junction
- Bendigo line, the final portion of whieh elosed im 1968 (Junetion to Heath-
cote). The company had its offices, workshops, locorrotive shed and sawnills
~located here at McIvor Siding. The former manager's residence and the old loco
shed are still standing. The major revenue earner for the company was the cut-
ting and nilling of firewood for industrial and domestic use in Melbourne and
Bendigo, although nuch traff’ c involved sleepers for the V R as well as 5ft.
and 7 ft. timbers for the Bendigo gold wnines.,A certain amount of traffic invol-
ved the eutting and carting of telephone poles as well as an extensive charcoal
traffic - especially during the early 1620's :

As shown by the naps, <the main line followed the road fairly closely for
12 miles to the Triangle. Between McIvor Ciding and the Triangle, several sid-
ings were laid to gerve mills established at those points. Parker's Siding,
with a capacity of 20 wagons, was L4 miles fron McIvor Slllnv Other sidings
were : Singleton's Siaing (7 niles, 25 Jubons\' Triangle \12 niles, 25 wacons),
Connelly's Siding ( 16 m*les 20 wagons,, Kelliy's Siding (18 miles, 18 wagons),
and Cherrington Terninus (20 vagons). Within a few years all mllllnw was con-—
eentrated at McIvor Siding, wi*h the coupany buying ©vimber from the forest
workers on a royalty basis per truck load.

"An indieation of the royalty payments and the high turnover of labour
can be seen in advertisement which -is tvpical of those which appeared fairly
frequently in the loecal newspapers. eg. From the "Nagambie Times" 28/7/1911 -

"Firewood Cutters, Wanted fifty cutiers, £1 per:truck for Millwood. 21s. per
“trueck 5{t. boiler wood. Maiden paddoecks, McZIvor Firewood Co. Tooborac."

Inwards freight for the mills and eutters* canps was carried free, as
were employees and other passengers offering, although nassenger accormodation
was never provided by the company. The line was laid for 15% miles alcong
roads, 1m. 10ch. in a Government Reserve, 13 niles in forest reserves and kn.
‘10 e¢h, on privately owned land.When the compnny's agreenient with the Shire
expired im 1921, the coupany &id not take up its opiion. Instead it continued
to operate at an annual rental to the Shire of £1-6-11, with various other
~amounts to private landowners.(£1,£1,£2,£10,£13-10,£55 respectively, In addit-
ion, £18-4-0 was paid to one of bhe private laqdnolders for a water—right.)

In 1926-7 there were 33 charcoal burners employed along the line, and
over a 3 year period prior to this a total of 8, 055 tons of charcoal was taken
out to markets over the tramway. A Mr Jeffrey of Bendigo was the lessee of
102 retorts, eighty of which were still operatinﬂ about the time the tranway
‘closed. Freight charged by tle McIvor Coupany was £1-13-0 per 11 ton truck,and
£2-17-3 pér 16 ton truek,
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Motive power on the tranway network was first provided by two Baldwin
2-6-0 tender engines which were purchased second hand fron the estate of the
late John Robb. Robb had imported the locos from America for construction work
at the Victoria Doek and work associated with widening the Yarra river near the
Port of Melbourne. Both engines were identical and built in 1889. When purchas-
ed by the McIvor Conpany they were narmed "Major" and "McIvor" after creeks in
the distriet. .

The engines weighed 40 tons roadworthy with 14in. x 16 in. outside cylin-
ders and a 140 1lb. boiler pressure. 0f typical American appearance, they had
slide valves nounted above the cylinders but operated via exterior rocker arms
from inside valve gear. Bar franes,extended sriokeboxes and large sand and stean
domes conmplete the basic specifications. The steam domes carried two safety
valves and large,deep-toned whistles. Mounted forward of each tall stovepipé
stack was a large kerosene headlight similar to those found on V R engines of
~the period.

Although withdrawn about 1925 they were not iumediately scrapped but put
up for sale with the rest of the company's assets. A return lodged with the
Registrar of Companies covering the period 1927-28 lists assets as including
"Locomrotives, trucks, steel rails and firewood,Dwelling and Office buildings,
oco sheds, stables, etec." In the same report it is recorded that soue payment
was nade to the V R for maintenance of rolling stoek, sometime within the per-
iod 4-2-1927 and 4-2-1928,

A later return showing the realisation of assets indicates the sale of

"gerap iron"to Hanley Bros. on 26th October, 3th November and 6th Decenber
1929 in lots of £100 each., On 20th Deceuber 1929 the Moreland Metal Co. Ltd.
bought a quantity of brass for £51-12-5. Therefore it seems that the two
Moguls survived at Tooborac for several ycars after closure and were scrapped
only when a buyer could not be found for them, since the items mentioned app-
ear .very late in the process of winding up the conpany.

To replace the two ageing 2-6-0's, the McIvor Co. purchased a . "W" class
k-6-0 Baldwin tender engine from the V R for £1500. This was W 227 and carried

builder*s number 6633 of 1882. This loco had 16in. x 2% in. cylinders (outside)

L ft, 3 in. driving wheels, 140 1b., boiler pressure and an approx. Tractive
Effort at 80% boiler pressure of 13,500 1lb., The grate area was 15.92 sq. ft.,
wheelbase 40 ft. 3% in, overall lenzth 48 ft. 114 in., adhesive weight 25 tons
13 ewt and a total weight of 61 tons 18 cwt.

Further evidence of the fate of the W eclass has been found in a return
to the Registrar of Conpanies. In 1932 a locomotive , sone rails and sundries
were valued at £600— 700, In a return dated 24th March 1934 the value had crash-
ed to £100., A further reportdated 2nd July 1934 and covering the period 4-2<34
to 26-6-34 showed that the locoriotive had been sold on 9th February for £50.
A month later on March 9th, the V R collected another bargain the points and
crossings at McIvor Siding for £20, '

Rolling stoek owned by the McIvor Co. congisted of some 65 wooden franed
Lk wheeled trucks purchased second hand fron the contracting firms of C & E
Miller and John Robb. These vehicles had flat tops with iron uprights and
crossbars at each end and were loaded with lengths of wood laid across then,
These wagons were purely for internal use on the tramway. Two of these trucks
were fitted with iron water tanks to supply water to outlying camps. Alsoc inc—
luded in the total of privately owned wagons were eight low-sided open trucks
but their exact use has not been discovered,

Most of the "through" loading(compared to the timber destined for the
bloeking nills at Tooborac) was carried in V R wagons which were permitted to
operate over the tranway network. Although nost of the V R rolling steck used
o the line consisted of I wagons of 10 tons capacity, a reference has been
unearthed (see cover) 1nd1oat1np the use of bogie Q R wagons for the carriage
of telephone poles, A 21 ton weighbridge was installed at McIvor Siding to
cater for the through loading conveyed by V R wapgons.

Safeworking on the tramway does not appear to have existed, although a
telephone line was installed for coununication. Mo svidencé ‘has beén found of
any serious accident occurring on the line, whieh was governed by a 15 wm.p.h.
speed linit, However various accidents of the type occurring to Mr Kennedy
(see cover) have been found in local papers. (hr Kennedy was hurt fairly badly
but recovered!)
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A certain amount of information reproduced below has been taken from the
Repnort made to the Viectorian Parliament by the Standing Counittee on Hailways
in 1927, following the offer of the tramway to the V R by the MeIvor Conpany.

see Vietorian Parllamentary Papers. Vol. 1 , 1927 pp 759 ff.) The major port
‘1on, however, has. been taken from files held in the Archives of the La Trobe
lerary, mainly. . involving returns lodged with the Registrar of Coupanies.

.i ., The MeIvor file is No. 4025 and the shareholdlnp details and the nmine of
1nf0rmat10n concerning the winding up of the ‘company have has been taken from

thls source.

Fron the share allotueﬂts set out below, it can be seen that the conpany
was essentailly loecal and was very profitable. for the small. number of share-
holders involved. The original capital was £10,000 consisting of 20,000 shares
at 10/; each, The directors at the time the company was formed, and the extent
of thei. shareholding are as follows:

Herman Henry Schlapp Investor 500 shares Direetor
Willian Noah Hedges " .. 500 " "
William Knox M.H.R- . .500 "

Thonas Tehan Grazier £00 il

John Langtree Rei;ly Surveyor 1 share

Within a very short space of tiue the situation was as follows:

Shares payable Shares paid up otherwise
‘ in cash _— than in. cash.
-W.Knox Mermber of House of iieps. 800 :
H.H. Schlapp Investor i :-3999
W.N. Hedges 7 - . 5300
T. Tehan Grazier 500
J.L.Reilly Surveyor 1 1200

“RiCo Anderson tockhbroker - 200

‘Unfortunately some of the returns are missing from the McIvor file and
there is little indication of the extent of shareholding between 1906 and
1925 apart fronm notification of Directors of the eonmpany. -eg. In a return
‘dated 28-2-191L4 the Directors were Messrs. Schlapp, Hedges and Tehan and the
Manager at McIvor Siding was Mr W.E.Prince.

By 1925 however a rather interesting picture has emerged with over half
the 42,000 paid up shares in the hands of two Directors and the West ‘Angtraliar
Goldfle ds Supply Ltd. of Kurrawang, W.A. (The figure of 42,000 shares cane
about by the increase over tle registered capital of the eompany- £10,000 -~
of 22,000 x 10/~ shares onm 19-4-1924. '

' The Return of Allotments dated 31-8- 1925 shows the shareholding as below

: ‘ Preferential Ordlnary
Schlapp, H.H. +Collins St. Melb. Investor 11,500
Hedges  W.N, Perth W.iA. ‘ W 5,750
West Aust.Goldfields Firewood Supply, Kurrawang Wi 5,250
Prince W.E. Tooborac Manager - 500
Klug G.C. . Collins St. Melb. -® : ' 625
Hanilton R. Boulder W.ho " 625
‘Sutherland J.H. Boulder W.A. . n 625
Nicolson Mrs A.C. Sth Yarra Vic. Widow . : 125
Tehan T. Mitehell’s Ck., Vic. Station Owner ] 1,500.
Reilly J.L. Queen St. Melb. Surveyor 3, 000

Stawell W. " " " .. Solieitor 500

By confirmation on 4-2--1927 of a resclution made at a neeting om 18-1-27
the MeIvor Timber and Firewood Company went inte voluntary liquidation, with
the Company's Secretary — Robert Norfolk - appointed as liquidator. The winding
up of the company is cleariy seea in the detailed returns shown below, The
sale of rails naturally makes up the major portion of the realisation of assets

-
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but the most interesting thing is the names of the buyers with their obvious

connections: with other private railways - eg. Hayden 3Bros.

is almost certainly

the Hayden Bros. of Barwon Downs, W.W. Gunn had connections with a trauway at
Crossover, north of Warrazul; and the MMBW purchase probably was connected
with the construction of the Silvan Dan. There was obviously no mad rush to
buy up rail judging by the steady sales of rail and material over 6 years. '

vibate

on_1-1928

C16=2
242 ..
12-3
14-3
19-3
3-5
1425
26-6
17-7
28-7
243
24-9
28-9
23-10
27-10
8-11

16-1-1929
9-5
16-5
25-5
14-6
27-6
137
19-7
26-7
1-8
1--8
228
26-8
5-9
14-190
18-10
26-10
8-11
18--11
3-12
6-12
13-12
20-12

18-1-19%0 Cameron & Sutherland

27-2

10-3

31-10
8-11

5-2-1951
13-5

20-5-1932
1-6-1932
296
2-3-1933
6-6-1933

‘Purchaser

. Hayden 3ros.
h L TR |
[ S

" ‘ on

W "
Kilroy & Storry
W.W. Gunn
W.H. Cheverton

MMBW

Lion Iron lolling Co.

n n n

1" " n

J.J. Bzard
J.F. Ezard

A

. Iten

Rails
n
u
L]
W

Sale of Plant

Rails

"

Lion Iron Rolling Mills "

J.E. Toole & Co.

Lion Rolling Mills

‘Toole & Co.

" 3 "

Canmeron, Sutherland &Seward

" n
Toole & Co.
" "

" "

Hayden 3ros.

W.W. Gunn

Toole & Co.
" "

Shire of McIvor
Caneron & Sutherland
Shire of McIvor
Cameron & Sutherland

Handley Bros.
" n

 Cawmeron & Sutherland

W.W. Gunn

Hanley Bros.
Cameron & Sutherland
Moreland Metal Co.

J.BE. Toole & @Bo.

Lion Rolling Mills

Toole & Co,

Colonial Sugar RefiningCo.

Hanley 3ros.
H. Richardson

Lovig Bros.
Miller & Co.

Peninsular LF Co.

Lovig Bros.
Anderson Bros. -

Rails
"

Coal
Rails
Coal
Rails
Scrap Iron

" n
itails

1"
Scrap Iron
lails
Brass
Hails

n

"

"

"

Sale of Scrap
Sale of Saws

Steel Scrap

RRails & piping
Weighbridge

Scrap Sales
Log Jinkers

Price

£100°

£139-18-8
£119-13-6
£119-2-3
£122-3-6
£111-0-3;
£222-13-11
£ 50

£ 84-18-5
£781-6-7
£250

£250

£250
£119-12-6
£119-17-5
£250
£299-8-3

£250
£132-3-1

£ 16-13-7
£133-2-3
£121-14-2
£572-2-0
£558-16-11
£557-8-0
£196-12-10
£100
£275-5-7
£189-16-2
£ 28-2-5
£142-7-1

£ 4-3-3

£ 13-1-0
£100 -

£100

£ 31-0-3
£126-11-3
£100

£ 18-5-6~
£ 51-12-5

£ 5-18-11
£203-9-3
£429-11-3
£347-3-9
£409-3-7

£ 68-11-0
£ 19

£147-10-9
£263-6-10
£ 26-10-0
£ 14-6-10
£ 22-4-0

; locos ?

— boiler tubes?
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In a return dated 24th March, the Locomotivg,ﬁails and Sundrieé were
valued at £100. ’ o -

Date ‘ Purchaser & Tten = & Price

9-9-193%3 W.N. Hedges Rails £425

279, : ik iz L £140

Sébt.1933 W.E. Prince 01d Buildings £ 158-13%-1
9-2- 1934 Victorian Rlailways _Loeonotive £ 50-0-0
9-3 n "  Purchase of Points & Crossingsat
Tooborac and releasing all elains in regard
to the siding » £ 20-0-0
4-5-19%34  Mitsui Bussan Kaisha Ltd.
Steel rails & Scrap £ 67-3-3
13-4 W.E. Prince Balance of Scrap and

ltails at Tooborac £ 10-0-0

The McIvor Company was finally wbund up on 25th June 1934 at 12 noon
according to the final item in the La Trobe Library file — a declaration
of Non-Attendance of Menbers at ‘the Final Winding -Up Meeting.

+o." the said meeting was not attended by two meubers of the
said conpany.t..
Thus closed another chapter in history of Victoria's private railwawys.

Other railway proposals in the area

As mentioned earlier in this booklet, when the decision was nade to
elose down operations hecause of the declining mining industry in 3endigo and
the inroads‘into the firewood industry by the new wonder fuel - briquettes;the
whole tranway system was offered to the VR as a going eoncern - loek,stock
and barrel- for £15,000; or £12,000 for the line and facilities alone. The
McIvor ecompany urged strongly for retention of the line gince it would have
cost only £1;500 approx. to recondition the W class.

Since the tranmway was closing because of a decline in the narket for the
line's basic revenue earner, it is quite understandable why the V R and the
Standing Cormittee on lailways were not interested in taking over the line!

It was elained by the V R that it would cost at least £12,000 to bring the
line up to a standard sufficient to carry "DD" class locomotives at 10 m.p.h.
Closure, therefore, was the obvious and inevitable fate.

It is interesting to note that this was not the first move to have a
Government railway built in the area.

" On behalf of Mr McBride, Minister for Lailways, who is ill, Mr McKenzie
Minister of Lands, received today a large deputation of residents of Moormbool
(introduced by Mr John Gordon M.L.A.) whose request was that a line should be
construeted to the Moormbool settlenent, either from the McIvor Timber Conpany's
line, a length of 6 niles, or to connect with the Heathcote line via Coster-
*ield, a length of 15 niles......" (McIvor Tines 23/5/1912)

The first deputation to the Government was unsuccessful and the whole
question was brought up again 2hout fourteen months later., Further correspond-
ence took place with the V R who replied in the vein that the railway was not
justified by the traffic offering and "that the best course is for an arrange-
nent to be made with the McIvor Timber and Firewood Company for an extension
of their tranway".(to Graytown settlement - G.Inglis) (McIvor Tiues 20/11/1913)

The same controversy seen from a slightly different viewpoint by the
"Naganbie Tines". In the issue for 31/5/1912, a local protested that "if the
tran eonpany (sic) came in it weuld have a monopoly, as it would not put down
a line unless the settlers agreed to sell all their wood to it. And as it gave
a fixed price, and an unreasonabhly low one at that, for the wood, the people
derived no benefit frow any rise in the wmarket. They desire an open narket and
a permanent line.,"

An anusing sideline to the second deputation made in August 1913 concern-—

-



- Page 8
ed a . ecomment alleged to have been made by a Heathcote businessman during the
deputation, and reported in the "Nagaunbie Times" for Friday 15th August 1913,
" T an a Heathcote businessman, and send ‘out a cart.with goods to ny
custoners. The wood carters make the roads very bad, so I would like
a line laid down to Moormbool., because the carters would then go out
there to work, and the roads would be better for ny cart."

Needless to say, the line was not bhuilt |

Qther jottings frdm local newspapers

Most of the extracts which follow breathe life into history of the McIvor
Tranway. They also pose some problems as the cormments in brackets indicate.
Nagambie Tines 20/12/1912 "Graytown Jottings"

"The runmour. is again about that the McIver Trawm Co. is going to build a
line from the Triangle to the Costerfield Antinony nine.The nining company
is going to erect smelters, and will require. a railway to haul flux and other
raterial to the mine and its ore,or rather,metal away. Possibly in the near
future Graytown will b»e a suburb of Costerfield."(When was the Costerfield
braneh — if any — built?)
Nag_rble Tines 27/1/1911 "Owing to the shortagq of rallway trucks, the Toobora
Tranway Co. is only running cne train per day, and it is said that the rallway
_authorities will not guarantee to supply it with nore than six trucks per day
for the next two or three nonths". :
McIvor Times 19/12/1912 "Mr R.Carr had the misfortune to lose his valuable
sheep dog-rﬁalleye) through being run over by the McIvor Tinber Co's train,
this being the fourth nishap at the sane spot."
McIvor Times 13/3/1913 ( In a letter to the Editor referring to the newly
lnsta led electric streetlighting in Heathcote being wmounted om spindly
"crooked looking stlcxs”u) .+"Alnost every second week one can see truckloads
. of handsone poles leaving the McIvor Tranway Co's siding to adorn the streets
of Swan Hill, Murtoa, Hamilton, and various other towns in the state..."
"Onlooker".
McIvor Times 6/11/1913 "LATE TRAIN. The morning train fron Melbourne due here
. (Heathcote) at 11-k1 a.,m. }id not reach here until 1-35 pn. today - or 1 hour
and 54 nminutes late. The cause of the delay was the derailuent of two trucks
at the McIvor Tinmder Co's Siding, Tooborac."
- Naganbie Tines 15/1/1909
"It is expected that the strike of woodcutters at Tooborac is now at an end.
The men were to resunc work on Wednesday at an increased pay at 1/— per truck
for millwoed only. This is not all the nen were asking for, but it was the
only concession the compary could sce its way to accede, and if it was not
acceptad the company was quite prepared to close the tranway down for six
-months ..." : ‘
Naganbie Tines 26/1/1912 Graytown Jottings" "The working of the State Coal
Mine seens to have had a bad effect on the 3endigo 5 ft. wood trade. The McIvor
‘Tran Co. is sending little, if any, 5 ft, wood away, while there are scarcely
~any drays carting to Heathcote..." :

Source material for this boak et has been, and is still being, odtained from
v the files of the "McIvor Times" and "Naganbie Times" in the La Trobe Library.
Other references: A.R.H.S. Bulletin No. 43, May 1941 pp 56-59.

 "Farewell to the Timber Line" — K.W. Turton.(4.i.il.S. Vie. Div.November 1968)
Coupany records held in the La Trobe Library Archives,Melbourne(File No 402%5)
plus actual investigation of relics and remains in the area.

This bhooklet was prepéréi by Frank Stanford aﬁd Graene Inglis , July 1972,
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LIGHT RAILWAY RESEARCH SOCILTY OF AUSTRALIA, McIVOR TOUR, 15th JULY 1972,

We cannot give you a ride on the tramway today, had we organized our tour

65 years earlier we could have - at least to Puckapunyal, as the Cherrington
line had not been built then. What would we have seen 65: years ago? The
nearest thing to a report of a fan trip that we have been able to find is the
following article from the "Mcivor [imes & Rodney Advertiser'" 23rd May 1907.

A TRIP ON THE TOOBORAC TRAMWAY

At the kindly invitation of the genial manager of the McIvor Timber &
Firewood Co. (Mr.Prince) our representative accompanied several local townsmen
on a visit to the Company's works at Tooborac, a few dayc cgo. After a pleas-
ant drive along the picturesque Tooborac road the party arrived at the head-~
quarters of the Company which is situated about hclf o mile from the Tooborac
railway station. After enjoying the hospitality of the officials of the company
a hurried inspection waa made of the opevations at this <nd of the works, as
we were informed that the train for Miichells*own would be due to leave in
about ten minutes, A visit was first paild tou the building which is used as the
office, from whence the operat .ons of the company are directed, the tram line
running past the door. It is neatly fitted up, the office being in the front
portion, a comodious dining room leading off from the office. The building is
also used as a dwelling for the officials, several bedrooms being provided,
and thekr'treature comforts' awve prepared lh the rear portion of the house.

A little distance away from the coffice is the Lnglne~house and carpenter's and
fitting shops, where all repairs etc are cttended to, the building being & very
spacious one. On the oppcsite side of the line is situated one of the Companyis
wood-mills, where the wood is sawn into blocks for household purposes. The
mills are fitted up to permit of the handling of the wocd with the least poss-
ible labor, and to effect this end, the comnpony's trucks loaded with timber
from down the line are run up cn an. elevated siding alongside the mills, and
the blocks when cut fall into ¢ large wooden hopper, under which the Govt.
railway trucks receive it. The mills cre run by two large portable engines,
and are capable of turning out a laxce quantity of sawn blocks each day. The
govt. trucks when lcaded are run onto ¢ weighbridge, which automatically
reglsters the weight of the wood and they are then shunted onto the malnllne
for transport to their destination.

The engine with its empty trucks vias now ready o start down the line,
and '""all aboard" was the crder cgiven., We scrxambled into the tiuck next to the
engine, some of the efforts cf The partv to cilamber over the side of the truck
causing a number of employess present to smile. Howevrer, zll got safely aboard
and with a blast of its big whistle the engine aud ites train started off. The
line for some miles runs along the side of a roced, and it is in reality a rail-~
way line pure and simple, the teinm "tramway'' keing somewhat of a misnomer.
The line being on the downgrade going outwards the train travelled almost with
its own momentum, but when the locomotive had tc use steam we were made fully
aware of the fact by the shower of suct and smut with which we were covered.
"My word" said-one of the party ''She primes o bltl't but the engine-driver only
looked back at us and smiled. We eninyed the evperience however, as we were’
con-cious of the fact tb at riding in ¢ railway carricge was an ordinary afifair,
hut a ride in an open truck with the fresii air playing through his whiskers
(if he's got any) did mot fall to everyonels lot,

.ll

After travelling for 5 or 6 nileg we cume “c the first woodmill on the
line, which is used principally for sawing sleepers for use in extending the
line. As the mill was not working we did aov stop; but sciled along until we
came to the second mill, where two empty trucks were detuched from the train
and left to be filied. It may be mentioned en passecn® that no time was wasted
in shunting, the ftrucks are mercly detached fron the cthers just above the
points where the siding runs tc the mill, cnd the rest of the *rain resumes
its journey, the datached trucks being left to run onto the siding by their
own momentumn.

The line here takes a tuwn off the rocd into privete property aond runs
through cleared paddocks for a mile or two, when another miil is reached and
the same operation is gone thrcugh of leaving empty trucks. A belt
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A TRIP.'ON THE TOOBORAC TRAMWAY -~ 2,

of green timber is next reached (probably the forest at Redgate - Ed.) and the
line then cuts through Mr. Tehan's property, where another mill is at work. On
arrival at this part of our journey we met Mr. Tehan himself, and he requested
the services of one of our party (a member of the medical profeasion) who acc=-
ompanied Mr.Tehan to his residence, a mile away, to examine one of his fingers
which had been badly bruised through a horse klcklng him.

e were left here for a while whilst the engine: proceded up a branch line
(the formation which leads into the Militerxy Range Area ? ~ Ed.) to get some
trucks which had been loaded with wood ready to be taken buck with us on our
return journey. Off we started again end cfter a run of two or three miles
reached the end of the line in this direction, being about nine miles from
Seymour as the crow flles, the total length of the line being 22 milass. Another
sawmill is situated here, and is kept busy all day long. AllL along the line
from its turn-off the road miles of wood is stacked, ready tc be loaded when
the wet weather prevents carting it in from the paddocks. The methods of un-
loading the drays at the mills is rather vnigue, very little handling bein
necessary. The drays are somewhat similar to the ordinuary wood dray, except
that there are no standards at the front and rear, only on the centre portion
and on arrival at the mill with his lcad the d river has simply to tip it up
against the stack. '

There are a great number of men employed by the Company, fcr besides thos
employed in the working of the line, a large number »f workmen are emgaged in
cutting and carting the wood, cnd also at the mills, a large sum of money being
disbursed in wages fortoightly-

Having reached the end of our run outwards, preparations are made for the
return journey, and as the empty truck we rode in on our way out was to be left
at the mill, we had to vacate it, which was ac¢complished with as much diffic-

ulty as that referred to in getting into it, two cof the pq:tv alighting on thei

hand and knees instead of their feet, to the amusement of the others. As we
were to take back a train of loaded trucks room was made for us on the tender
of the engine by shovelling coal into the bottom of the tender and placing bags
of chaff round to sit on. This being accomplished we started homewards. The

~weather all the afternoon, to zay the least of it, had been decidedly fresh,

and when we reached the mill on Mr., Tehun’s property we felt we could do with
""'somethirg of a warming nature'' and eagerly awaited the return of the ''doctor'
feeling sure that ''something'' would come along with him. Two sharp blasts of
the whistle were given to acqucint our friend that we were waiting for him,

and that if he did not wish to ''miss the bus'' he had''better get a mecve on,surc'
Presently a buggy was seen coming through the timber, but our hopez fell to
zero (very much zero) when we saw that our medical friend had come buck empty
handed, "and oh, it was so cold!" At this point Mr.Prince, the menager of the
Compony, who had been on business down the line, came abeard and we resumed our
journey., We had now a heavy load of about 18 trucks of wood behind =z, and it
kept the fireman busy shovelling in the coal to keep up ¢ good head of steum.
Trom our observations oa that Sourney home we came to the conclusion that if
any man earned his money that firemen did. The only thing that caused us any
regi 2t was thet we could only look at the glowirg coals from our perch on the
tender, but could not feel their genial warmth. Hoving picked up another

couple of trucks of wood we speeded onwards, the first stiff grade being reache

and the fireman had to carefully '‘nurse'' his fire to keep up enough steam *o
entble our "iron horse" to recch the top pf the hill. But it was accomplished,
aund we then had a level run for a nile or two until we pulled up to give the
engine o '"'drink'', It may be stated here that the water for the locomotive is
pumped from a creek nearby by means of an cil engine into tanks erxected close

tc the line. Another start was made, and soon after another stiff pinch in the

line made the engine ''puff', and we kept the fireman busy., Darkness was now
upon us, ond as the firebox of the engine was opened every new and then the
lurid glow from the fire lit up the tender, one of the purty remarking that

we looked like so many demons perched —p amongst +the coals and lit up by the
lurid gilow of the fire. It seemed so strange and novel to be riding on a
loconotive amongst the green timber, the trees in many cases being wuite ~lose
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A TRIP ON THE TOOBORAC TRAMWAY - 3

clongside the track. Every now and then it seemed we would dash into one of
them in the darkness, and as th2 light £rom the furnace lit them up the effect
was strange and almest weird. Nothing could be seen ahecd but ddarkness, and

we had simply to sit still end trust to the ''man at the lever', who by the way
knew his business cnd we felt quite safe in his hands. Away at the end of the
train of locded trucks the ruzm i charge (who acted as guard) could only be
distinguished by his handlamp, and as he skipped from truck to truck his light
looked like a Will-o®! the Whisn dazting cbout, No comfortable seat in a guard's

var: for him.

At last we reached the end of vur trip, arriving at the office 4t about
7-15 pm, and as we walked insicle the clerks must have thought that the remnant
of a tribe of aboriginzls was paying them a visit, as our faces and hands were
black from %3 ¢onal dust and scot, and each one of us was looking at the other
and shaking His sides with laughter, forgetting that we were all ''tarred with
the same brush''. However, cfter a wasi end an appetising hot meal, so kindly
provided for us, we felt new mzn, und arcund the cheery office fire, preparatory
to our start for home, '"jokes went round and harmless chat', and under the
soothing interest of the '‘pipe' we cli agreed that the trip had been a most en-
joyable one, despite the raw state of the atmosphere.

With grateful feelings for the c¢reat kindness und hospitality extended
to us, we drove home with the firm convicticn that we had spent a very happy
afternoon, ;

In the course of conversu® o with one of the officials we were informed
that the company has ovders fo:r firewcod six months chead, and intend ex-
tending their lines towards Rushwortl through the Mcoxmbool forest (i.es the
Cherrington line - Ed.), arzangements have been mcde with the gbvernment in the
matter. The mancgement cf the whole of the company's operctions is ably
carried out and reflects great credlt on 0il cuncerned. The company has also
a large wood business in West Australia, on even more extensive lines than this
pne. Onr district L5 therefoye fortunate in having such a large and progressive
concera in its midst, and the company'!s enterprise deserves the highest commend-
ation,
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THE MAPS
b

A general locality mop is shown on the back page of the cover.
The two-inch/mile maps are as follows -

No.l McIvor Siding and the first few miles of the tramway.

2 A noxrthwards continuation of map 1. This map includes the sites of
Parker'!s Siding and Singieton's Siding.

3. A northwards continudation of mcp 2, commencing around the site of
Singleton’s Siding, and showing the route of the tramway to Triangle
Junction, and Cherrington Junction on the top right hand corner of the
map.

4. Commencing at Triangle Junction, shows most of the Puckepunyal line,
and the first portion of the Cherrington branch.

5. A continuation of the Puckapunyal line, alsec showing Graytown Junction
and the first section of the Graytown line.

6. Shows the first section »f the Cherrington line from just north of
Cherrington Junction, the Puckopunval line can be seen in the bottom
right-hand corner of the map.

7. A continuation of the Cherrington

o I1ts terminus.

t
cnnellyis and Kellv's Sidings wexe in *“he
their precise location is nst known.

o]

rca <hown on map 6, but
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From the ''Nagambie Times' 21/2/1913
""Graytown Jottings'

A serious accident occurred to Mr.
and Mrs Kennedy whilst travelling to
Heathcote.

"When near the Triangle, and at a
point where the line runs very close
to the main road,the train passed them.
The dense smoke from the locomotive
getting in front of the horse caused
to turn and back towards the line so
close to the train that one of the
trucks struck the gig and smashed it
to pieces....'

it

From the McIvor Times, 16/4/1914.

Mr. J. O'Dea of Major's Line wrote to
the Council complaining that ''wood
stacked adjacent to his property on the
McIvor Company's tram line for three
years and more was a breeding place for
rabbits''. Council decided that ''the
Managers attention be drawn to the com-
plaint and he to be requested to re-
move the wood without delay'.
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From The McIvor Times and Rodney Advertiser -
20th March 1919
""At 10 a.m. last Saturday (15/3) Mr Alex

Anderson, an employee of the State Forest Dept.
had one leg broken at Singleton's Siding on the
McIvor Co.'s tramline. With a gang of men, Mr
Anderson had just finished loading a QR truck
with poles, and was pushing it along to attach
it to some others for transport to Tooborac.
When the truck had gained some pace Anderson got
on the step to work the brake. From this position
he was unable to shift it, and as therxe was a
space between the end of the poles and the truck
he climbed into it that he might use both hands
to operate it. Despite his efforts,he could not
get the brake on,and the truck dashed into the
others with considerable force. So great was the
compact (sic) that it caused the poles to jump
forward, jamming him against the end of the truck,
the end of which had to be cut out to release
him. ..."
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